
APPROVED 

Loudon Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Meeting Minutes 

December 23, 2015 
 

Present: 
Howard Pearl, Roy Merrill, Dave Powelson, Alternates George Saunderson & Charlie Aznive 
George Saunderson and Charlie Aznive were appointed as voting members in the absence of Ned Lizotte and 
Earl Tuson. 
Deputy Chief/Code Officer Bill Lake was present. 
 
Minutes: 
George Saunderson made a motion to approve the minutes of November 30, 2015 as presented; seconded 
by Howard Pearl.  All were in favor. 
 
Discussion: 
William & Karen Towle, School Street – Mr. Towle explained that they operate an RV rental business out of 
Northwood; they sometimes have an RV at their house on School Street to clean it before they go to another 
rental.  He said the business is done solely over the internet and can be done anywhere they have internet 
connection.  Mr. Towle said a neighbor has complained, stating that they are running the business out of their 
home and yard.  Chairman Powelson discussed home occupations.  Mrs. Towle informed the Board that all of 
the RVs are privately owned and titled.  She said they do approximately 200 rentals per year and have 
probably had a total of 8 at their home during that time.  She said they have a building/garage in Northwood 
where the RVs are kept.  It was stated that it is a matter of logistics as to where the RV is coming from or 
going; it is short term if they are in their yard.  Code Officer Lake said this matter was discussed at a recent 
Board of Permit meeting, and the Towles were sent to the ZBA for an internet business.  It was noted that 
there are no rentals done from the house, no customers there, and no signage.  Mrs. Towle said it is no 
different than a service person bringing their truck home to leave for a job the next morning.  Dave Powelson 
explained major occupations, saying that they could maybe apply for a major home occupation and have a set 
number of RVs that could be at the house.  Mr. Towle said they are not asking for a home occupation.  He said 
they are only here to clarify that they are not running a business out of their house; they are not renting from 
there.  Roy Merrill said the town would have a problem if everyone who brings a camper into their yard had to 
be looked at.  Bill Lake explained that this was brought forward as a code enforcement concern, it was brought 
to the Board of Permit, sent to ZBA; they have gone through the process and asked all the questions.  Howard 
Pearl said he does not see an issue.  Mrs. Towle stated that they have found another site to park them, but 
they will have the occasional RV in their yard for transition to another location.  George Saunderson said he 
would think they have solved their own problem by finding a new location.  It was agreed that the matter has 
been discussed and does not appear to require further review.   
 
Public Hearings: 
Application #Z15-21, Adam Bousquet – Variance for automotive service/repair, M53, L11, AFP District.  
Abutters Jeff & Doreen Green were present.   
 Mr. Bousquet stated that the building on Lower Ridge Road was set up for this type of work.  He said it 
was brought to his attention after getting set up that this is not an approved use in that district.  Dave 



Powelson said it appears that the building was built by a previous owner to service his own logging trucks.  Mr. 
Bousquet said that was correct.  He said the building cannot be seen from the road so many people do not 
even know it is there.   

The chairman went through the points of the application with Mr. Bousquet.  He asked if there were 
any questions from the Board.  Charlie Aznive said he had no questions; he recalls the previous owner’s use of 
the building and has to agree that the proposed use is reasonable.  The chairman asked if there were any 
abutters wishing to speak in favor of the application.  Jeff Green said he has a repair shop and junkyard two 
houses down the road, also in the AFP District.  He said there has always been something of this nature in the 
area.  He said he does not see it as a concern; it sets back from the road.  Mr. Green said the address is a 
concern and needs to be corrected.  He spoke about the property having two entrances and the numbering 
being confusing.  Mr. Green said concerns of vehicle noise on the road have been voiced; Mr. Bousquet said 
he has spoken with the party about the noise.  Mr. Green said there was a house in the area where a similar 
business was run for 20 years.   

The chairman asked if there were any abutters wishing to speak against the application.  There were 
none.  Howard Pearl asked if this would be just general auto repair.  Mr. Bousquet said he builds engines for 
drag Hondas and would be doing general automotive repair, rust removal, etc.  He said he does not do any 
painting.  Roy Merrill and Howard Pearl spoke about the building being one of the nicest in town and this 
being a perfect use.  Jeff Green stated that there are three bays and one drive-through bay.  He said the 
building has a steeper roof than most because of the logging trucks; snow load is not a concern.  Mr. Green 
said there are no wetlands, no drainage concerns, and the entrance off the road is flat.  

Mr. Bousquet said this would be a one-person shop; he is not planning to do more.  He is leasing the 
shop; the owner uses part of the shop for personal storage.  George Saunderson suggested putting a limit on 
the size of the business, coming back if more than one employee.  Other Board members spoke about wanting 
a hand with some jobs at times, not limiting it to just Mr. Bousquet.  Bill Lake spoke about addressing the shop 
differently than the home because of the driveway.  He will look into this from the E-911 end of things.   

Roy Merrill made a motion to approve the application with a maximum of two employees; seconded 
by Howard Pearl.  Dave Powelson said this is a unique situation; he feels it is a good use.  Charlie Aznive 
agreed.  A roll vote was taken:  Charlie Aznive – yes; George Saunderson – yes; Dave Powelson – yes; Roy 
Merrill – yes; Howard Pearl – yes.  Unanimous – APPROVED. 
 
Application #Z15-22, Michael Martel – Special Exception for Reduced Setback, M28, L15, RR District.  Abutters 
Hermel, Denyse, Natalie Fortier & another family member were present.   
 Mr. Martel explained that he wants to build a 30’ x 60’ pole shed with a roof to store equipment 
and/or hay.  He said the shed would be 6’ tall at the back and 16’ at the ridge pole.  He is asking for a 
reduction of the side setback from 30’ to 10’.  Mr. Martel said he has just learned that the Fortiers have some 
concerns. 
 The chairman went through the points of the application with Mr. Martel.  He asked if there were any 
questions from the Board.  Hearing none, he asked if there were any abutters wishing to speak in favor of the 
application.  There were none.  Mr. Powelson asked if there were any abutters wishing to speak against the 
application.  Natalie Fortier said the family is concerned about the crowding of their property and the 
decrease in value of their property.  She said Mr. Martel has added other structures and the clutter has not 
decreased.  Ms. Fortier said they have concerns of what the building will look like.  Herm Fortier said he is 
concerned about the added runoff from the roof.  They showed pictures of the existing structures and 
conditions of the property.  George Saunderson asked Mr. Fortier if that concern would be alleviated if this 
shed was 20’ further from the boundary line.  Natalie Fortier said having the shed further away from their 



house would feel less crowded.  She said there are a lot of structures there now and this shed would crowd it 
even more; she also spoke about their view of the proposed shed.  Howard Pearl asked about the distance of 
an existing carpenter’s shop to the stone wall.  Mr. Martel said it is approximately 40’.  Dave Powelson, 
reviewing the pictures, asked about the distance between the existing structure and the proposed shed.  Mr. 
Martel said he would leave enough room to work on both buildings, probably a few feet.  He explained the 
locations of existing structures and the proposed location for this shed.   
 Mr. Martel suggested that a site visit might be in order.  George Saunderson asked Mr. Martel when he 
plans to start the construction of the building.  Mr. Martel said he would prefer sooner than later.  Mr. 
Saunderson asked if delaying a month would be a big deal.  Mr. Martel said it would not; he is not trying to 
rush this through or past anyone.  Herm Fortier said there is a big ditch that separates the properties by the 
stone wall, and there is no place for runoff except onto his land.  He said there is a lot gravel right now, a 30’ x 
60’ roof would displace a lot of water, and there is already a problem with the ditch.  Mr. Martel said he feels 
the water can be managed. 
 Roy Merrill asked Mr. Fortier what would help.  Mr. Fortier said that Mr. Martel has plenty of area to 
put this shed without crowding the boundary.  He said they are not sure of what the building will look like.  
Mr. Merrill stated that the abutters would have no say of the design if Mr. Martel moves it out of the setback.  
Mr. Martel said he has looked at options of other locations on his property and this is the preferred location 
for the shed.   
 A site visit was scheduled for Saturday, January 9, 2016 at 8:30 a.m.  Mr. Fortier said it would be good if 
the shed location was staked.  Mr. Martel said he could do that.  Howard Pearl made a motion to continue 
the hearing to the site walk on January 9th and then to the January 28, 2016 meeting; seconded by George 
Saunderson.  All were in favor.  There will be no further notification. 
 
Adjournment: 
George Saunderson moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:17 p.m.; seconded by Charlie Aznive.  All were in 
favor. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
Donna White 
Administrative Assistant 


